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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel)... The Council's Committee on Budget and Finance shall come
to order. This is our regular meeting for Monday, June 15, 2015. Present today at, for
the Committee is Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Balsa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 15, 2015

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excused is Mr. Guzman. Before we take up the two items we have posted
for the Committee's review this morning, we shall open it up for public testimony. So
if there is anyone wishing to provide public testimony, the Council shall give you an
opportunity to share your thoughts on any item that has been agendized.
Ms. Bouthiflier, do we have any requests for testimony in the Chamber? Okay, having
none, well go to our District Offices. Well ask our Hana Office if there is anyone
wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Well go to Lanai and ask Ms. Fernandez?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. And on Molokai, well ask Ms. Alcon if there is
anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, there is no request for testimony on today's
agenda so at this time with no objections, we shall close public testimony for today's
meeting.
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COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members, so ordered.

ITEM 32:

ACCEPTANCE OF $468,000 CONTRIBUTION FROM
MAUI TIMESHARE VENTURE, LLC TO CONSTRUCT
THREE TENNIS COURTS IN WEST MAUI (CC 15-76)

CHAIR HOKAMA: May I please direct you to the first item which is BF-32. This is under the
heading of Acceptance of $468,000 Contribution from Maui Timeshare Venture, LLC
to Construct Three Tennis Courts in West Maui. We are in receipt of a County
Communication 15-76, from our Director of Parks and Recreation, who has
transmitted a proposed resolution. Also today for your information, Members, at the
appropriate time, the Staff will assist us, we shall be proposing a revised resolution
that takes care of some of the adjustments that Staff and the Chair feels are more
appropriate. At this time, well ask our Parks Director, Mr. Buenconsejo to give us any
comments regarding this request, please.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you. Good morning. Good morning, Council. Chair,
you know, from what I could gather prior to this coming to the hearing today, is this
460,000, you know, obviously we look at the price point, it doesn't build three tennis
courts. But this was about five-six years ago when these monies were supposed to
come into the Department. The tennis courts were built about five or six years ago
already. Those are the three extension courts over in West Maui that the Department
had already built out and we used some of the park assessment and a mix of that and
some of our General Fund and operation monies out of the CIP budget. So this money
here is actually just, is due to us, but from years back, it was supposed to have been
contributed into the Department already. So it's more just accepting it now. With I
believe the reason being again with the completion of that timeshare, of the Hyatt
Timeshare. So we're receiving the monies as of now but the build-out has already
been done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Baz, any comments you wish to share?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item--I was just discussing this with the
Director--seems like if we had already constructed the required tennis courts then the
money would be received as a reimbursement to those construction costs. So could
refund the original funding source of those tennis courts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this is one equal transfer, Mr. Baz? The project cost us 468 and
now we're getting 468 back?
MR. BAZ: I would have to go back and look at the original cost item, but I believe the cost of
the construction was larger than $468,000, so this is just a partial refunding that was
a requirement of their SMA Permit.
SM
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The SMA is that they construct the three and so they have to pay
the full share of the three courts or just a portion of three courts? What is the
condition of approval?
MR. BAZ: I'm not familiar with that, I'd have to go and look through the SMA Permit section.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: We also have Jeffrey flack here from the Department of Planning, who can
describe more in detail this condition.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well ask Mr. Dack to come and assist us this morning, please.
Yeah, grab one more seat, Kaala. Thank you. Come join us.
MR. DACK: Yes, good morning. When the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Dack, introduce yourself for the record.
MR. DACK: I apologize. My name's Jeffrey Dack, I'm a Current Planning supervisor in the
Planning Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MR. DACK: I handled the permit application for the Hyatt Timeshare a number of years ago
back in the, around 2007-2008. When that was approved, there was a condition,
No. 67 applied to it, which reads the applicant shall retain three tennis courts on
Parcel 5--which is one of the existing parcels at the timeshare for Hyatt--and
contribute the value of the three eliminated courts to be donated for construction
elsewhere in West Maui. As I understand it, there was a negotiation of value between
the developer, the owner of the timeshare and the Department of Parks and
Recreation, and the number before you today is the number that they agreed at during
that negotiation process. So it wasn't actually to pay for actually a precise tennis
courts, at least when it was originally envisioned, that may be what it functionally is
turning out to be now. But it was again, to be "the value of the three eliminated
courts" and that was what was negotiated to the value you are being asked to receive
today. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Dack, after that negotiation, why didn't we collect the money then?
MR. DACK: I'm sorry?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why didn't we collect the money after the negotiation?
MR. DACK: The negotiation only completed fairly recently. I can't tell you precisely when, I
think within the last few months is when the negotiation was completed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And how long has the courts been constructed?
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MR. DACK: I can't speak to any existing courts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Buenconsejo, do you know how long the courts been in existence?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, it's been about six years since those new extension courts were
put in up at the Civic. So that's the left side of the courts, if you're looking at it to the
left.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. fll have the Committee ask their questions or if they have
some concerns. Ms. Cochran, any questions for our gentlemen here?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Departments, for being
here this morning. I share the same question that these courts have been built out
already and now we're only now receiving the money, you know, and this is a
mandated thing. I mean they, the one whereas is they desire to but that desire is
actually a mandate to contribute to us which has been long overdue of six years. So
my question is, the money that we are to receive now will be refunding back, Mr. Baz,
you said to the sources that had been expended. So that would be going back to West
Maui park assessment fees and General Fund?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if... Member Cochran -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: --if that's the original funding source. I'm trying to go, look through IFAS right
now to look up -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --those, the project.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. I just thought mister, Director
Buenconsejo mentioned park fees and General Funds money.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Ms. Cochran, i, you know, again, kinda got the research before I got
up here. Some of it was I think is a little bit of both, a mixture of park assessments
and General Funds, but again, Mr. Baz will try to look at that exactly, find out where it
did come from.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right. Well very good. I guess better late than never,
Chair. And the, so they have existing three. And Parcel 5 is actually in Kaanapali at
the site of where the timeshare is, Hyatt's timeshare?
MR. DACK: Yes, Councilmember, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so they gave, they're, we've already built out I guess a
replace, three courts up at the Civic Center to offset the three at the timeshare?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Yes. So the original courts back in the Hyatt days, there was
courts there, and I guess during that negotiation period it was, you know, the
replacement would be up at the Civic which we had the room for it at the time so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And last follow-up, Chair. And because they were public, for
public use, and now the current, the Hyatt tennis courts are only for timeshare
property owners? Is that the...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Ms. Cochran, I'm not too positive. Maybe he can answer that one.
Hold on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Dack.
MR. DACK: Yeah. The, I believe the original tennis courts at the Hyatt were not necessarily
for public use, but the condition didn't require that the funds be, go to replace for
public or private use. But it seems very reasonable and good that if we're receiving
funds and for something that had been for the elimination of three private courts that
now we make them available for public use.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, very good, I agree. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess this might even be for
Mr. Ueoka. Condition 67 doesn't give the value, it just says contribute the value of the
three eliminated courts. And if the value of the courts is whatever the actual price
was, shouldn't that be what they should be contributing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: It says contribute the value of the three eliminated courts. So they worked
with the Parks Department and came to a determination as to the value of the three
courts that were eliminated.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That were eliminated, not what it costs -MR. UEOKA: So...

It
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to reconstruct them somewhere else?
MR. UEOKA: It doesn't say contribute the value of -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The new ones. Okay.
MR. UEOKA: --construction of new courts, it just says the value of the eliminated courts, so
that was the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And they came up with that amount six years ago, seven,
whatever.., two thousand and...
MR. UEOKA: I believe they stated they just recently came to agreement on the value. Just
recently, like within a month or two I believe they said.
MR. DACK: Yeah, that's, the evaluation negotiation completed recently. As I understand it,
the developer/ owner, Hyatt
was working to clear their, all their conditions to get
occupancy of their timeshare and there were a number of outstanding conditions they
still needed to address. So this, they got pushed to actually come in to a conclusion
recently working with the Parks Department.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr, Buenconsejo.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Mr. Couch, as far as the value, where it came from, that value didn't
come from our Director's Office, meaning it was already set in place by the time it got
to my desk. Or wherever the value was created I couldn't tell you, but it was not from
our current administration from the Parks Department that it was valued. You know
there is a frustration, I understand the frustration of receiving it six years, seven years
later, you know, from what it was. And that seems to be the other things as well with
other parks, not just necessarily tennis courts, but you look at Kehalani parks makai
and mauka, total completion of developments, our parks haven't been turned over.
Maui Lani is another example of a park that's eight years in the making with the
development and we're still waiting for those parks to be turned over as well, which
aren't even completed yet. So these are just things that, you know, as a Department
Director now looking into it, a lot of the current situations, you know, we receive our
parks, our assessment monies way after the fact of the developed that are completed
SO.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Your evaluation that the Committee is, has questions on, Director, takes
into account the 335,000 we gave in Fiscal Year 2014 for rehab of those courts? Or is
this a different courts?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, Ill pass that to Mr. Ba.z, he may have a.. .(inaudible)...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I believe the funding that was appropriated in Fiscal Year '14 was for
rehabilitation of the older courts at the Civic Center. Some of the resurfacing, the
surfaces had been damaged and part of the discussion of the acceptance of the
donation of that sport court from the EA or whoever that foundation was that they
gave it to us, during that discussion that the item of the condition of some of the
courts that actually were not being used at the time came up and funding was
appropriated to rehabilitate those older courts.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I have more on that. And as far as those three other courts, so
that is currently under construction right now. The three older courts per se are
actually all torn up right now and they should be completed in the next month. So it's
the three courts surrounding the Dream Court, so the first phase if you want to call it
that of the tennis complex over at the Civic. So that is currently under construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Criveflo, questions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCHIMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And it's interesting and thank you for bringing
up the subject matter also about Kehalani and Maui Lani, 'cause this community has
waited an awful long time and nothing has been, you know, and they still want to give
us a drainage park. But I won't go into that because I think that's not the
conversation we're having right now. It takes a long time, and the problem, Mr. Chair,
comes up is the Council seems to get it behind the eight-ball every time. You know it's
already been agreed upon and then now we gotta try to fix it. I would like to see these
agreements come to us before we get to the end and then we're struck with that
agreement, and that's happened many times. And Mr. Ueoka can attest to that. And
no offense to this Administration, I'm not talking only this Administration, it's other
Administrations that have made agreements and we were given the after-the-fact
agreement. And I think that's totally unfair. An agreement should be reached before
us before it's agreed upon with the Department, but that's another, maybe another
issue that we have to take up in ERA... EAR, excuse me. Anyhow, so my question to
you, Mr. Buenconsejo, is bottom line, this monies that are going to be contributed or
donated to the County is to offset the construction of the three new courts in West
Maui? Is that was, this is intended to do?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Mr. Victorino, basically it's just more just to recoup some
costs.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Getting some of these funds back, this 468,000 is just to recoup the
cost that the County has already spent for the development or construction of the
three brand new ones and now with the three resurfacing projects as well. It's just
more getting back some money cost on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just so the public understands and if I may ask this
question, Mr. Chair, what does three new courts cost us approximately?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: For total construction?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Not the rehabilitation of the three, I'm talking three
new courts.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, that, you know, I, it's, I can get back to you on that. I don't
want to make a made-up number and be way off track of what it really does cost. So I
can get back to you on it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that's something I'd like to know and I think the
public would like to know. But I do agree, you're agreeing upon the existing courts, I
got that, so that's not negotiable in that respect, you know, 'cause you're talking
existing courts, what they're actually worth. So I'm okay with that, but I'd sure like to
know what three new courts costs us as far as putting 'em up in West Maui, and I
think the public should know how much more money we have to come. Even if it's
park assessment, I don't care what fund it comes out of, it's still County money, so I'd
like to know what that difference is. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that request.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mister.. .yes, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you. We, there was an appropriation in 2008, Fiscal Year 2008 for
$750,000 out of park assessment, West Maui park assessments for the Lahaina Civic
Center project, is the closest one I could find here. So I'll, I'm going to pull up the
report to see what the actual expenditures were.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Mr. Carroll, any questions? Ms. Balsa,
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, just a quick one. And thank you that, and I'm glad we're
at this point where we're finally going to see some money. I'm just curious, we talked
about how this price was determined of what they're going to give us. I don't
remember and I probably could use some help from our Corp. Counsel, this price,
does it include and when this happens and these things get delayed and delayed and
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delayed like this is seven years, are there penalties and interest accrued on these
agreements or we just take whatever they give us and eat the time problem?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Great question, Ms. Balsa. Mr. Ueoka, Mr. Baz, any response, please.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. P11 attempt this one. The document's silent on it so it
doesn't appear that there's any penalty and interest provision, so it would be unlikely
that we could collect it. On a side note that's generally speaking, sometimes it's also
problematic when we collect these types of things too soon, because if the developer
decides not to go forward with the project, we're then faced with the problem of
reimbursing the money if they never go forward with it. You know they don't create
the requirement; therefore, we typically give back the money, so it's a double-edged
sword there also. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you recommend we downzone 'em too?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think the Chair beat me to my next question. Where, you
know, it sounds like we lose either way. So I'm just curious. I mean, you know, I'm so
tired after being here as long as I have been now of hearing people complain about
how untimely we are. And in my last waning years here, I'm trying to figure out how
we can alleviate some of that, because it's the common complaint, everything takes too
long. And so that's my comment. Let's take the money and run, you know, let's get
the check, but I sure wish that there were a way to somehow make things happen
faster. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. Further questions on this item, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And is that, to Mr. Ueoka's point, is that kind of probably
why this has sort of been set back because the Hyatt Timeshare Tower has just been
recently--right--built out. So is that kinda, do you think, I mean Parks is here,
Planning is here, you're here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Would that be kind of the reasoning also?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe Mr. Dack mentioned that they want their CO so
they're very eager to complete all of their conditions now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So they need this approval? This approval is a requirement to get the CO?
MR. UEOKA: I believe so, yes.
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MR. DACK: To get their final CO, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have an issue with the amount?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, Chair, I'm trying to...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're not required to give 'em approval today.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? I'm trying to recall, there was an $800,000 amount
we all were discussing I think a couple budgets ago in reference to tennis courts in
Lahaina. We had the whole tennis league come in full force to testify on behalf, and I
believe it was resurfacing of three or four courts up there. I think it was just
resurfacing and not so much total build out from bottom up, but it was 800 and that
was just for resurfacing. So that's a nice, that's almost a million bucks. So anyways, I
was just trying to, you know, in reference to this 468 that we're discussing today. But
yeah, I, if there's a way to negotiate. But, you know, I don't know, I think Mr. Ueoka
has something to say. But thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions or comments at this time?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I like the direction you appear to be headed in is to, you
asked if anybody had a question with the amount, I kind of do, you know. And I
understand Mr. Ueoka's comment on the condition that it is for the value of the courts
that were there. I just was wondering how we could deal with that situation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: By not approving.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Chair's going to call a short recess subject to the call of the
Chair. . . .(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:28 a.m.
9:36 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel)... We shall return to order. Thank you. Regarding this item,
Members, BF-32, I would ask the Committee this morning to consider, the Chair
would recommend the following. I believe we have received, the Staff and I have
received enough questions from Members of this Committee that I feel it's appropriate
for us to go and get those responses to the questions presented to your Chair prior to
- 11 -
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making a final determination. So I'm going to defer this item, send those
communications out for response, and upon receiving those responses back, schedule
another Committee meeting for final decision making. Is there any concerns or
questions to the Chair regarding how I, we plan to move forward on this one?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well defer this item. Thank you very much, Members. And then
well work with the Parks Department and Planning as need be and then well bring
this back up as soon as we can, Members.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ITEM 6:

COST ITEM PROPOSALS (HAWAII GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, BARGAINING UNITS 2, 3,
AND 4) (CC 15-141,15-142, and 15-143)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the next one is the interesting one. It is called BF-6. This is our
item that comes under the heading of Cost Item Proposals (Hawaii Government
Employees Association, Bargaining Units 2, 3, and 4). We are in receipt of a
Communication 15-141, from the Mayor, who has transmitted to us a proposed
resolution that would approve the cost items for Unit 2, Supervisory Blue Collar
Employees, and this would be for Fiscal Years 2016 and '17. Under County
Communication 15-142, from the Mayor, we have another proposed resolution for
Unit 3, Non-Supervisory White Collar Employees, and Unit 4, Supervisory White Collar
Employees, also for Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017. Finally, we also have 15-143, from
the Mayor, and this is a proposed resolution for Non-Supervisory White Collar
Employees excluding from Baxgaining Unit 3, Supervisory White Collar Employees
excluded from Bargaining Unit 4, and this would be for Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017.
We'll, at this time, well have Mr. Baz give us any opening comments before we ask
Mr. Hiromoto, our Director of Personnel Services to give us his comments.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So the Director of Personnel Services or the Mayor
transmitted these proposed resolutions related to the cost items for these bargaining
units, and as you're aware, the resolution needs to be approved by Council for these
cost items for the ratification of the contract to be complete. And Mr. Lance Hiromoto
is here to discuss the issue and answer any questions you might have. And I'll try to
answer any questions you might have as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Director Hiromoto, your comments, please.
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MR. HIROMOTO: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. Yes, you have before you
cost items for HGEA Bargaining Unit 2, which are our County's blue collar
supervisors. Unit 3 are our County white collar non-supervisors, and Unit 4 are our
white collar supervisor class work. The Hawaii G9vernment Employees Association
recently ratified these three contracts with its members, so therefore we are presenting
these to you for approval in accordance with HRS 89, Chapter 89. The legislative
bodies of each jurisdiction each approve the cost item once it is ratified. And again,
these contracts are for two years beginning July 1, 2015 which is in a couple weeks
and ending June 30, 2017. I'm here for, available for any questions you may have.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Compared to what is being presented to this Committee this
morning that's part of this agreement for ratification, what was our original position?
Can you state that at this time since it's over?
MR. HIROMOTO: I'm not sure what your question is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What did we throw on the table? I mean I'm sure we can talk about it
since negotiations is over. So I'm trying to figure out what was the employer's
represent, union's position, what was ours? And I'm trying to understand how we got
to where we are for this morning.
MR. HIROMOTO: I think I can say that what was offered was what was offered through the
other bargaining unit, HGEA Unit 13 if you recall settled back in 2013 for a four-year
contract ending June 30, 2017. Unit 2, 3, and 4 negotiated and received a two-year
contract back in 2013, and that's why we have these cost proposals before you this
year. But again, it's similar to what was offered to Unit 13, basically step movements
and across-the-board increases, again, similar to Unit 13.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Give us a little bit more comment on Page 2 of the cost item for Unit 2,
Mr. Hiromoto. And give us your, some clarification on how this standby is supposed
to work under Item No. 2, effective July 1.
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, previously the standby differential, well standby differential applies
to employees that are put on call or on standby by the supervisor which means that
they end their shift and are put on standby in case any emergencies happen during
the evening time. Previously the way that the differential was applied was for example
if an employee ended work on a day at 3:30 p.m. and resumed work the following day
let's say at 7 o'clock a.m., the person would get, would receive 25 percent of the
person's daily rate if that employee was put on standby from 3:31 in the afternoon
when he stepped out of work until the person stepped into work the following day.
With this new proposal what is important is that word calendar day, so the person
would now receive if again put on standby by the supervisor, 25 percent of that
person's daily rate from 3:31 in the afternoon to midnight, and another 25 percent
from midnight to when the person would start work in the morning. So it basically...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So that is the portion, what you guys define as portions? Portions is
between that 3:31 to midnight is one portion and then from 12:01 'til whatever is
another portion?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct, because the language was changed to calendar day, a portion
within a calendar day.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And there's only two portions per calendar day?
MR. HIROMOTO: That's correct. That's the maximum that they can. Because we recognize
that some employees may, you know, may be called out. For example if the employee
were to be put on standby at 3:31 right alter the employee leaves work, gets called
back at 8 'clock for an emergency and then works 'til let's say 9 o'clock and then goes
back out on standby and goes home on stand, been put on standby. It'll reach
midnight, the person is at home up to midnight, and then the next portion day starts,
the next calendar day starts. So we don't count that as three portions, it's limited to
two portions per calendar day.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this is a good clarification for the employer? It makes it easier
for us to calculate, for your people to calculate? Does this help us or this is not to our
advantage, this portions and maximum?
MR. HIROMOTO: It does add cost to the operations if an employee is put on standby. I don't
think it clarifies anything but it does increase cost if an employee is put on standby,
increased cost to the employer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the standby is also calculated into the retirement amounts?
MR. HIROMOTO: I believe so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll start with Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everybody wanted to raise their hand so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You had a great expression.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, not good, yeah. So, Mr. Hiromoto, being what you
just told us, why did we agree to this? I mean, you know, I mean this is, again, I
thought we were in this modem [sic] of trying to keep costs down and this doesn't
seem to move in that direction.
MR. HIROMOTO: I... Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
MR. HIROMOTO: Mr. Victorino, I guess I can just say negotiations is complex, it involves
many parties, it involves jurisdictions that have different operations, different size
-14-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 15, 2015

operations. You know for example maybe the County of Maui has relied on standby as
a way to address emergency situations after work. Some of the larger jurisdictions
may not, they may have night crews that address those emergencies. So whereas an
issue may be very important to one jurisdiction, it is not important maybe, as
important in another jurisdiction. So negotiations is complex in that way. We're not
always... all the jurisdictions don't have the same issues and, you know, level of
concern with each issue, yet the way that the Hawaii Revised Statute is written, you
know, we're just one vote in the process. So we, if we, even though we may not like
the idea or the issue, you know, again, we're just one vote in the process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well again, Chair, I guess that brings that having a person
at the table as we have put it a number of times, is very important, that somebody
who knows what's going on be at the table with you folks. And so again you just said
one vote, so no matter what concerns we have, no matter if we don't like this, we
cannot say no versus if all the rest say yes our one vote doesn't make a difference? Or
has to be unanimous as far as the vote is concerned?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: The way that the FIRS is written in this type of negotiation, in this
negotiation in particular, the State would have four votes, each of the other county
jurisdictions which number four would have one vote each. So you would need
majority vote to pass a proposal over to the union.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I think the public knew that but I just wanted
to hear, let me them hear it again that we are just one of eight votes, right?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so even if we vote no, it doesn't make a difference if all
the other seven yes. Or if all the four counties were to vote no, let's say that was to
happen and we had a Mexican standoff then at four-four, what happens next?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: It would, the, I guess the issue or that particular provision would not or
would go over to the union with maybe two separate ideas. The union of course would
not know what to do with that. If we were to go to arbitration which HGEA can
proceed to if we do not agree on the terms of the proposal, I think we would be in a
disadvantage in that we would go into arbitration with two positions before the
arbitrator, the union would be unified in their position. The arbitrator would then
have to decide, you know, looking at the employer side having two positions, you
know, which way he's going to go with that. So we have done that in the past where
-15-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 15, 2015

we had what you call a Mexican standoff and it did not bode well for the employer. It's
much better if the employer goes into arbitration with a unified stance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORJNO: Okay, thank you. I have other questions but to be fair to
the others, Mr. Chair, I know they're all wanting to ask questions so IT give, P11 yield
and let them ask some questions, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Victorino. Wow, Mr. Ueoka, get ready because alter
we, I ask the other Members, I would like you to respond why as an employer, we're all
employers, yeah, the State and the four counties, how can one employer be treated in
a different manner from all the other employers. I'm an employer, how come I only
have one vote? It cannot be size, Kauai has one vote, City and County has one vote.
One is 50,000 people, one is 1 million people, they get one vote. What makes the State
deserving of four votes? That's my question, 'cause I think there's an issue of
discrimination. Mr. White, any questions on the proposed contracts?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Mr. Hiromoto, can you share with us what
objections you raised on Maui's behalf to this proposal?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: Mr. White, one of the issues that or one of the reasons why this.. .and I
assume you're speaking about the standby issue?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. HIROMOTO: Was that Unit 1 which are the blue collar employees of the County or the
State negotiated and received this particular language in their contract back in
July 1 of 2013. These, again, Bargaining Unit 2 are their supervisors, their blue collar
supervisors, so that's why they came in and said, you know, we want what our
subordinates are getting. When we go out on a job, you know, these, our subordinates
are getting or when they are put on standby over midnight, they are getting two
portions, we're just getting one portion. So it's, that was their, I guess their point that
they wanted to at least be similar to their subordinate workers. Our position is,
especially County of Maui is that because much of our departments with blue collar
supervisors use or utilize standby, we were not particularly in favor of this proposal.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well let me ask then what objections did you raise on Maui County's
behalf when the Unit 1 provisions were put forth?
MR. HIROMOTO: Unit 1 provisions were adopted or were passed over during meditation.
Again, same issue, cost is basically doubled, so the cost was the, was our argument to
that issue or that proposal.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And did you ask for Maui County or have any other options to
opt out of that in the negotiations?
MR. HIROMOTO: To opt out meaning that we're not signatory to the contract?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, because you said that all five employers are, have different sets of
circumstances, was Maui County, did Maui County ask for any ability to opt out of
that provision?
MR. HIROMOTO: I think we can negotiate, you know, as we've done in the past,
supplemental agreements that would, you know, provide for other benefits or
differentials, but this was part of the master contract so no, we did not request an
opt-out from the, for this provision in the master contract.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Did we ask for any supplemental agreements that would reduce
the exposure to this and by providing something in its place?
MR. HIROMOTO: No, we did not request any kind of contract changes, but departments are
currently looking at operational changes. And that, again, because this is a
longstanding, excuse me, the, just standby is a longstanding practice, departments
will need to negotiate that with the union. They cannot just, you know, change it
overnight.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And the other question is that it's our departments' option not
to place people on standby, is that correct?
MR. HIROMOTO: That's correct. The number of people that are on standby, the levels of it,
employees that are on standby and just standby, yes, that's a management decision.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Because, you know, we, hotels operate in a 24-hour basis as
well, and in more than 20 years, I don't remember any, I don't have, we don't use
standby. But I don't remember anyone ever saying they can't, they won't come in
when called. When something comes up at the hotel, we make calls and people come
in. So I guess the second question is since we have the option of whether or not to
place people on standby, is it possible for us to vote yes on all the other provisions but
just not fund the standby? I guess that's a question for Mr. Ueoka.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You need time to think about it, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Yes. But let me clarify the question. So you just wouldn't appropriate money
for that cost item?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
MR. UEOKA: Okay. Let me ponder that. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: 'Cause I don't know whether this is, I mean this is not part of the
resolution, but it, I guess it is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's an attachment.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It's an attachment, so -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --does that mean we have, this is an all or nothing like budget
amendment, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: That would probably be more of a question for Mr. Hiromoto. But I did want to
share if I can, I had a discussion with some of the department directors, being your
Budget Director I had a concern about this standby time myself and any issues and
items and basically asked, the question is why do we need people on standby? Can't
we just put 'em on call because we do callbacks anyway, and in Water, Wastewater
specifically because we're providing this public health item, it's very important that the
departments have available staff that when they're on standby, they're not just, you
know, subject to being called back and different things, they have to answer their
phone immediately when it rings. They have to, they can't be enjoying, they can't be
going to a party, they can't be doing anything like, other than like a five-minute
shower is basically the only time they can be incapacitated at that moment. They, you
know, they can't be drinking, they can't be doing anything else other than just waiting
for a call. So it does restrict their own personal freedoms basically. So compensation
for that is something that's reasonable. The unreasonableness is this calendar day
item and how they get, you know, 25 percent for a few hours and 25 percent for
another few hours. So we're trying to see if there's a different management way to get
around that, but basically it is a very difficult process not to have people on standby.
If, you know, the Council did restrict that no monies shall be paid for standby then,
you know, we'd have, I mean just change operations and if something breaks and
nobody wants to answer their phone then, you know, things may not be repaired. So
that's a big risk that we might take.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If the people in Unit I and 2 don't respond, who's left to respond?
MR. BAZ: The director I suppose. I mean exempt employees, right, but still, you know, if a
water main breaks, we gotta have people that are trained with the right equipment
that can operate it and.. .yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I understand the need. I mean there's no question the need. I'm
just concerned about the cost and the fact that in a private company, generally people
are going to come in and take care of it, and I think our County employees would to.
There may be some that would say nope, you didn't put me on standby, I'm not
answering my phone, I'm not doing anything, but I think you would find that people
would respond. And, you know, I don't have a problem with the other elements of this
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proposal, because they're in line with what was given to other bargaining units. I still
feel that it's a little high compared to what's going on in the private sector, but it's
consistent with what's going on in the other County departments. But this is one of
those items like rank-for-rank recall that I feel is just an overreach and an
unnecessary added cost for no increase in service.
MR. BAZ: I'm not sure how much we can discuss a grievance that was filed against the
County and I believe it was Statewide for this standby issue from the union, and the
challenges that we had. And because of that and because, you know, this is a major
cost, especially for Unit 1. Unit 2 this is a minor cost issue. For Unit 1 it's a major
cost issue. So it was something that we tried not to, you know, our interpretation of it
was different, I think that's why the language got clarified in the Unit 2 contract to say
that it's a calendar day versus just a day so that there would be a determination that
midnight was the end of that calendar day. Because we said oh no, a day is still less
than 24 hours, right, so we wanted to say okay well we're not going to pay the two
portions of the standby, and there was a grievance filed against us for that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's still ongoing or that's settled?
MR. BAZ: I'm not aware.
MR. HIROMOTO: I think with this new contract, All be settled.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. And so for Unit 1, what departments are that?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: Basically I'd say all our Public Works, Water, Environmental Management,
Police has some, Parks, Department of Housing and Human Concerns has some at
Kaunoa, park caretakers, Fire would have some as their mechanics. But I think the
larger departments are the Parks, Environmental Management, Public Works, and
Water.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So are we able to make note of, you know, everybody's
important with, but as far as, you know, the actual standbys, who are the essential or
what departments are essential as such? I can see water main, I can see the
Environmental Management for our wastewater systems. But was there any kind of
discussion as to, you know, is it just right across, blanket everyone in this unit
qualifies or will be assigned as standbys?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Member Crivello, thank you. I had that discussion as well and we have
significantly scaled down the people on standby. You know for the Water Department
they have to have, they have, you know, very widespread geographic locations and so
they need to have a team, you know, in different areas to be able to respond quickly to
water issues, if it's at a treatment plant or a well or a water main break. So they, but
they have, the managers, the directors have restricted the amount of people on
standby. Yeah, so we have taken a management perspective to reduce the cost to us.
It's still a significant cost but they have, we have tried our best to reduce that cost.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. I appreciate that. I think that would be some
consideration and, you know, you trying to have that discussion, and I'm sure the
bargaining units can understand the high cost and what it involves. So likewise with
Unit 2, who are the departments involved with Unit 2?
MR. BAZ: I believe it would be the same departments, not necessarily Human Concerns or
Police 'cause they may be managed by a different manager. Unit 2 are the, basically
like the working supervisors of the Unit 1 employees, and so, you know, they're
basically the supervisory people or a certain, different classification. So Mr. Hiromoto
can correct me if I'm wrong but that's my understanding of what Unit 2 is. So that's
why there's actually a lot less people in, Unit 2 than in Unit 1.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. HIROMOTO: Ms. Crivello, that's correct. So you would find Unit 2 employees in
departments with Unit 1, mostly with Unit 1. What the Budget Director just
mentioned, I don't believe like Fire, I don't think there's a Bargaining Unit 2 supervisor
in the mechanic shop because there might be only like 3 mechanics. Even Kaunoa,
they have just a few park caretakers down at Kaunoa, so I don't think they have
Bargaining Unit 2 employees. But the larger departments like Parks, Public Works,
DEM, they would have Unit 2 employees.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Well, to follow up on Ms. Crivello's
questions, do all the folks in Bargaining Unit 1 go on standby or only the essential?
Do you know that or...
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it's definitely only essential.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So the Parks guys...
MR. BAZ: If we had everybody in Unit 1 on standby...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ...(inaudible). . . good.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, yeah. That would be a completely -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, that's...
MR. BAZ: --unreasonable budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. I would expect. Mr. Hiromoto, you were talking about,
you know, some entities may not use standby, some would because it's important, I
mean it's a better use of our resources. The entities, I'm assuming City and County
apparently doesn't, it sounds like they don't use standby and maybe even the State
doesn't use standby, is that...
MR. HIROMOTO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
MR. HIROMOTO: Member Couch, I, it's not that the standby is not important but
operationally some jurisdiction, the large jurisdictions, the ones like you mentioned,
City and County and the State do have night crews so they're better able to address
any kind of emergencies that may occur after the normal work hours.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's five of the eight votes who don't have standby but
have say in that, how in the heck does that happen?
MR. HIROMOTO: Well they do have, I'm not saying that they don't have standby but maybe
proportionally they don't have as much standby as we do for an operation that size.
And, you know, and that's some consider, you know, one of the considerations that we
may, we've looked at is whether we should have a night crew in some of these
departments. And again, any change to the current practice is going to require at
least consultation with the bargaining unit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, that would beg a question, I don't know if it would work
with Mr. Baz or just with the Administration in general is are we, have we done a cost
analysis as to whether it would be cheaper to have a nightshift as opposed to the
standby?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Specifically with Department of Water Supply, you know,
Mr. Taylor and I have had those conversations in looking at seeing what's, if there is a
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cost benefit, and basically our, the size of our system doesn't necessitate a 24-hour
crew. And yes, we could have them doing other work during those times, but you get
more complaints from your residents about us doing maintenance work in the middle
of the night versus just the regular...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Emergency stuff.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so I'm looking at the initial
correspondence to us dated May 7th and in it it was, you were hoping that this would
be waived, Council to waive referral of this matter to Committee. And so it looks like
the appropriations are for Fiscal Years 2015 to '16 and then 2016 to '17. So are,
you're needing some of this additional funding now before June 30th? Is that why -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --your request to waive Committee referral? I mean here we
are in Committee but he wanted to expedite it I think quicker than we have.
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: Member Cochran, no, our request to expedite it would just help us in, well,
help the other jurisdictions mostly. Because we have a pay lag, meaning that pay
increases that would start on July 1st of, in a couple weeks, we don't, employees don't
get paid that increase or that until the last paycheck in July, so July 31st. We don't
have to say push the button on these adjustments until probably like around the mid
part of July, but the other jurisdictions either don't have a pay lag or they have a
shorter pay lag. So for them it's, it would be critical that they have some indication
whether this cost items are going to pass by each legislative body, because in
accordance with HRS 89, all legislative bodies have to pass or have to approve the cost
items before it's implemented. Of course if it's a large jurisdiction like the State, you
know, may need to begin the, at least maybe they would need to push the button, so a
rejection by this body would probably necessitate the State from then going into each,
into their system and pulling back every adjustment for their employees. So what we
wanted to do is just have this heard as early as possible so that we have some
indication that this cost items is going to pass Statewide.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. And the, so this, these units have no
bearing on the lifeguard situation, that was an entirely, they're not incorporated in any
of these units we're looking at?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be Unit 14, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I think Mr. Hiromoto can give us a status on Unit 14's contracts.
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, the bill or the act that passed that created the Unit 14 Bargaining
Unit did have a provision in there that said that until that contract is negotiated, that
employees in bargaining unit.. .because the Ocean Safety, our Ocean Safety employees
are either in Bargaining Unit 3 or Bargaining Unit 4 which, you know, have negotiated
a pay increase, so that the act that created the Unit 14 Bargaining Unit said that
those employees would get what their bargaining unit, Unit 3 or 4 received until such
time that the Unit 14 contract is established.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which has not, obviously.
MR. HIROMOTO: Which has not, so the Ocean Safety Officers will be receiving these pay
raises or these adjustments if passed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, thank you. And but I guess Mr. White's
queries in regards to the question about not funding standby per se pay. I mean I see
where it's needed, especially in those departments that you mentioned, those are areas
that emergency cases would need to be addressed immediately.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Public safety, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, public safety, health type issue, departments. So
yeah, it's quite an increase. So just trying to figure out ways to keep the service to this
community there at a reasonable I guess cost. So, Chair, thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And before I launch into my
remarks, I want to acknowledge a conflict 'cause I'm very familiar with this standby
issue having a husband that retired from the Water Department who did this thing
and now having a son who's in the Water Department and in that same category of
being on standby and being called out on Christmas Day or whenever. A pipe breaks
or a hydrant goes, somebody's gotta go. So I look at this in a very interesting way,
because I look at it from a fiscally responsible point which is what we're doing, and I'm
also looking at as the person who receives this, the practical individual who gets this.
And I will agree with what Budget Director Baz discussed about the idea of being
available, regardless of whether or not the phone is ringing, you must be available.
And if we're, if my son is on standby and we want to go to Lahaina for breakfast or
brunch on Father's Day, he can't go 'cause he's gotta be in the district in case he gets
called, he's gotta respond very quickly. And so there is in my mind some reason for
compensating people for that. But again, looking at it from a fiscally responsible state,
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you know, we keep adding more and more costs to the cost of having employees in the
County and yet we keep saying we have to control costs. I don't know that there's a
meeting of the mind as to the reality of all this. People don't want to pay for anything
more, yet we want all these services and we want to compensate people fairly. Two
and two does not make six, it makes four, and this money has got to come from
someplace. I don't have a problem with paying it, but I do have a problem with how
we decide how much to pay, and I really feel that as the payers we're not given fair
consideration. You know we're told everybody agreed so now you have to pay this,
that's wrong, because we're the ones that are held responsible by the public for what
we want them to pay for. I think we need to do something at the State level, and as
counties, we need to get together and have a meeting of the minds about this. It's just
getting out of control, Chair, and it's how do we be fair? And I don't think that the
employees are the problem, I think it's the process. And I really support Member,
Chair White's, you know, recommendation that I don't like this, it's not comfortable.
This goes on every time that we have a negotiation, we get the bill but we really don't
have any say in how that bill is put together. And I think that's the problem. So for
me I'd like to put the energy there. I think we need to pass this, you know, we don't
want to hold up whatever's been done, but looking forward, we need to put some real
energy in how this is done. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your thoughts. Mr. Carroll? Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And I've listened with great intent with
my colleagues and all of them bring up what I call very major and important points.
But I think Ms. Balsa just identified something that all of us really don't take much
consideration until it happens, is what her, I mean her husband and her son presently
does. Her husband retired. When a water main breaks on Sunday afternoon at
3 o'clock, people want water.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they want it fixed now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's a little difference. If your waterline, Mr. Chair,
breaks in your house, you have an option, you can turn off the water and wait until
tomorrow and call whomever, a plumber to come in and fix it, right. You have a
choice, your individual choice. But if a waterline breaks and it had serviced 500
customers, I don't think if you asked all 500, do you mind us call tomorrow and well
bring 'em in and well wait 'til Monday so we don't pay any overtime or extra costs. Do
you think that 500 customers are all going to say no problem, well wait? I doubt that
very much, sir. And I know you guys smiling at this but this is a real fact. We're not
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not dealing with a hypothetical situation, we are dealing with fact now. I understand
why standby is important. You cannot drink, you cannot do anything, your life is tied
up, 'cause I have family and friends who are in that area, I understand that. I hate to
disagree with you, Mr. White, but I worked in a hotel and when they would call me in,
if I had gone out all night and I wasn't capable, I didn't come in, I couldn't, I had to
say no. There's a difference, there's a real big difference. We're talking the community
at large, and many of these essential services, sewer break, water main break, any of
these have detrimental and safety and health concerns that need to be addressed
immediately. So although I think this is not good the way it's set up and I agreed right
from the beginning, I said that, this is not good, I believe also that this needs to be
moved on. I agree with Ms. Balsa, needs to be worked at the State level which you and
I both know has always been a real task 'cause they live in a castle down in Oahu and
they don't understand the real world around them. I really, I believe that. I've been
there and done that with them. You did, Mr. Chair, you've been there. It's almost,
sometimes it's almost as bad as Washington, D.C.I don't know how much in touch
they are with the real world, but let's not go any further than that. So although I
think it's a bad idea, I don't like it, I'll still support it only because it needs to be done.
And we need to get to the root of the problem instead of always trying to cut it off at
the top because it grows right back. That weed's coming right back, so we need to
make that change. And I hope like Ms. Baisa in the few months we have left here that
we, you know, we can get some of these things done and walk away knowing that the
process is fair and expedited that can be done. But I really can't compare apples with
oranges, I can't, I cannot, and this is a whole different game. We're talking where
many people are involved which is the community at large. Again, my pipe breaks, I
turn off the water, I can wait 'til tomorrow, that's my call, but I'm one individual. I
don't know if you can do that for an entire community. A sewer breaks in my, if my
sewer lines breaks, I'm going to have to call somebody. I may not have to call 'em right
away, but if it breaks down on the main street, now that's a whole different story now.
So I'm saying, Mr. Chair, I agree with all the statements, I agree with everybody, we
need to make changes, but change doesn't happen here today. We've got to make a
decision. And so I'm in favor of making the decision because again, I trust Mr. Baz
and administrations are moving slowly but surely towards eliminating or at least
condensing what callout people need to be put in that equation. So I hope, Mr. Baz,
you continue and the Administration continues to work on that, 'cause that's very,
very important. I think that's more paramount right now than anything else. What
are really and who is really needed to be put on this callout list whenever an
emergency occurs. I can see Water, I can see Sewer, Park, I can see a number of 'em
but maybe some of 'em don't need any more, maybe the need is not there anymore.
But P11 leave it in the Department's hand. Mr. Chair, thank you very much for letting
me carry on on this, because I think it's important to wrap it up and make sure
everybody understands that we're not happy with this but this is the cards we were
dealt and until we can get a better dealer, we're going to have live with it. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much for your comments, Mr. Victorino. So,
Mr. Ueoka, any comments you can give with why the State is justified in having four
votes versus all other employers with one?
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MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair, I can't justify it or anything, it's just a provision contained in the
Hawaii Revised Statues.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we would need a statutory revision if we need to make any adjustments
in how the votes are in the future, would be allocated and what would be the new
majority then?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, that is my understanding, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We have three proposed resolutions, each one is going to need to be
revised, Members, that the Staff has already worked on. One area that 1 would ask
you, gentlemen, to give us comment today because we have all received earlier
communications about a concern of our County employees regarding Unit 3. And so
does this contracts taking care and address the concern of pay equity regarding our
employees? Because it's been brought up to this Committee and we always said take
care of it in contracts. So has pay equity been addressed and a proposal is in place to
take care of those concerns?
MR. UEOKA: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: I believe the equity concerns were in relation to the starting pay of a Clerk I, I
believe, versus a Laborer I. I don't believe this contract increased the starting salary
for a Clerk I, so I'm not... and I cannot speak to whether or not that satisfies the group.
But I believe those were their concerns and the concerns were not addressed. That
direct concern was not addressed. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So both employer and bargaining unit representatives chose to ignore the
pay equity issue? Is that our understanding today?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
MR. HIROMOTO: I don't think that.. .well, I know that this contract did not address the
particular issue that was brought before this Committee to provide certain, only
certain BU-3 employees or classes of employees a $600 pay, $600 a month pay
differential. This... and going off of Deputy Corp. Counsel Ueoka's comment, the
negotiated contract does not increase the particular or the salary schedule until I
believe 2016, or excuse me, 2000 ... January 1, 2017. So employees will be moving,
will have step movements from July 1, 2015 if they are eligible to or through
June 30, 2017, but the actual salary schedule would not increase until
January 1, 2017. So the comparison that the individuals that came here earlier to
discuss, you know, re-pricing, it's not going to help that, because they, although they
are getting pay step movements, their comparison was with the entry level Clerk pay
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compared to the Laborer in a different bargaining unit's pay. One of the issues that I
would present is that we're talking about two different bargaining units that negotiate
separately and have different compensation theories, so it does not address the
re-pricing or issues that the group brought before you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this is just a ... you would... can I describe this as a Maui County
issue only? The other counties and the State does not have an issue with this subject
and therefore it's not important to the other employers and bargaining units?
MR. HIROMOTO: I'm not going to say it's not important, but I think you're correct in that
this issue with regard to re-pricing that was brought up by the group is only in Maui
County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. 'Cause we have Statewide contracts, right?
MR. HIROMOTO: That's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The other thing that for the Committee we need to be aware of
since we just passed the new budget that will take in effect in two weeks, we can, you
know, push this out of Committee this morning, this, the Budget Committee, where is
the money in the budget to pay come July? 'Cause you're going to need couple of
million dollars just for the new budget year.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Six. Six million.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not six.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, that's two years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We're going to need about two and a half. Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The departments' personnel officers are currently
reviewing.. .because this is a, the first year as a step increase -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --we can't just automatically calculate how much that's going to cost us, so they're
reviewing those items right now as far as who's eligible for steps, what step they will
be at, and what their salary will be as compared to the budgeted amounts in the
FY '16 adopted Budget. The, once that determination is made, then a review will have
to be made of the different programs and how that would impact the program, if
additional funds would be required, then, you know, we'd have to come back to the
Council with a budget amendment to appropriate more money in those programs for
those, this increases.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Are you folks clear? We need to make some adjustments later with
working with Mr. Baz 'cause it's not there currently. Any question, further questions
for our gentlemen? Mr. Carroll? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a quick one, you just jogged my curiosity.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Approximately how much is this going to cost us more?
CHAIR HOKAMA: About 21/2 million for the fiscal year, upcoming fiscal year just starting
July 1st.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's 21/2 million we gotta find. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, Chair. That was kind of my question as in the, you
know, expediting this because we're passing out this current fiscal year budget, and
with this it looked like yes, the increase and as stated 2.5 million, so interesting.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And back to the question of re-pricing.
Was it even brought up in the discussions? I mean I would hope that having heard
the concerns that at least it would have been brought up in the negotiations. And was
it shot down or?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
MR. HIROMOTO: I don't know if the subject was brought up in the HGEA negotiate, HGEA
internal negotiations or, you know, what they are going to present to the employer, but
it was not on the table during negotiations.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: At all?
MR. HIROMOTO: Which means that could.. .yeah. Which means that they could have
discussed it but I, we don't know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Unit 3 is represented at the table?
MR. HIROMOTO: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no other questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. On the last page, the additional cost for the
healthcare benefits, the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which reso are you looking at?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm still looking at the Unit 2-CHAIR HOKAMA: Unit 2. Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --reso. The additional cost of $11,939 for 2016, what percentage
increase is that, that you're using there?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, Member White, I don't know what percentage that would be from
this year's.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz, do you know?
MR. BAZ: Mr. White and Mr., Chair White, the calculations that are in these resolutions
were given to us by the State, I believe, Office of Collective Bargaining. They calculate
these numbers and present it to us based on information that they've collected from
the different jurisdictions. I have no idea what percentage increase that $11,000
would increase, but I can take a guess that it's a very small amount. Yeah. 'Cause
part of the reason why it's a small amount for us is because we're already doing the
60/40 payments whereas the other counties were doing 50/50 in the previous
contract, and so the increase to us is very minimal.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But I believe that's just for 46 individuals, isn't it?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Chair, I'd like to get a breakdown of what the percentage
increases amount to, because it's another frustration that I have is that all these other
things that are contracted for simply get increased, they're never involved in the
actual, they're not brought and put on the table at the same time as the wage
increases. And so these are, you know, these are significant amounts of money as
well. And for them not to be taken into consideration in the negotiations I think is too
bad. When we negotiate with the ILWU, we have employee meals, we have healthcare,
we have wages, and we have retirement benefits and so forth. So if, you know, if we're
in a tough financial situation and they want more of one or the other, it generally will
come out of one of the other categories. However, it seems to me that we never seem
to get anything back in these negotiations. There's no adjustment to the work rules,
there's nothing but give, give, give, and that concerns me. You know along the lines of
-29-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
June 15, 2015

what Ms. Baisa said earlier, you know, the money has to come from everybody else,
and in the face of the remaining unfunded liabilities, we've got to start controlling
some of these costs by asking for something back during these negotiations. And I
don't see it and I think it's just adding to our challenges with being able to fund
everything. So and it adds to the challenge of adding employees, because we're adding
a whole lot of cost. And as I, you know, with these agreements, we need to remind
ourselves that the, just the increase in the cost of employees for the County of Maui
between the first time we went back to significant raises in 2013, from 2013 to 2017,
the amount of additional cost for employment for the County of Maui is equal to all the
taxes that we raise from all of the businesses and all the residents in all of Kahului, all
of Wailuku, and all of my district combined. Now where are we going to get those
taxes? We have to get them... or where are we going to get those revenues? We're
going to have to increase taxes, we're going to have to increase rates, we're going to
have to do a lot of things to cover this, and yet as Mr. Victorino, Ms. Balsa and others
have stated, we're not at the table. We have to deal with what is decided upon. I'd like
to see, you know, with Mr. Victorino's assistance through HSAC that we maybe ask
the Legislature to take another look at the way the negotiations are handled. And
because it's a little troubling that we just simply end up having to pay the piper every
time around without getting much in the way of adjustments to how it allows us to
work more easily and effectively as departments. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we do have a factor that private sector, I, we didn't deal with it much
which is fiscal year. I mean if we took another two weeks to finish the contract, we
took two more weeks to finish the contract. We didn't have this well, June 30, July 1
is your magic days so if, you know, you don't do this, you don't do that. I mean you
and I have been in negotiations before so we understand that. I would say though one
thing I'm going to ask Mr. Baz is I'm not too sure we need all of these increases. I
believe during budget especially with the trust funds, I think we did budget at
60 percent, so if we did, then is there really additional cost involved if we've already
budgeted at the percentages that the contract is recommending? Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I was actually going to get your attention to make that
clarification. We did already include premium increases in the Fiscal Year '16 Budget.
You know because the healthcare premiums are costs that are put on us by HMSA,
Kaiser, you know, the insurance providers, those rates don't change because an
employee's pay changes, those change based on the agreements, the ability they have
to increase their rates and get it past the Insurance Commission. So yeah, just
because these employees are getting increases doesn't not necessarily mean that the
EUTF costs are going to go up, in fact in the resolution it specifically states increase in
cost in subsequent years is due to the anticipated increases in premium amounts, not
in their salary. So and we have included an adjustment in the FY '16 Budget to cover
those costs. So that's why I don't know where these or why these are included in the
cost items. It's not additional cost because of a pay raise or step increases.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So is the total additional cost accurate enough for us to make a good
decision on, Mr. Bar? 'Cause this trust fund one, you know, to me is I don't get the
additional costs.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought we budgeted well.
MR. BAZ: Right. No, yeah, we did budget well for the health insurance costs, and any
budget amendment we'd be requesting to cover the increases from this collective
bargaining agreements would not include increases to the EUTF because we have
budgeted an appropriate amount. So as far as that's concerned, but the cost item, no,
this amount I'm not comfortable that this is accurate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman, any questions you may have?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No questions but I do agree with yourself and Mr. White
about the negotiation process, very unilateral.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, further questions in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, just a quick statement that I've already started
the process of putting together a resolution asking HSAC to bring forth this issue to
the State Legislature for review. And I think it's time. It's long overdue actually. And
I think all the counties can unite behind of this. This has been one of those
challenges that sometimes you get three counties that want to do something and one
that doesn't, and that's another issue. But I think this one I think all of us can unite
behind of it, Mr. Chair. You know that and I know that, that it's time, and so I'm on
the, in the process of working on this. So it will be a proposal for next year's HSAC
legislative priorities as far as sit down and review this whole system to see what
changes can be made to make it more equitable. And taking away the four votes from
the State 'cause to me that's... even when I was at, with the Board of Education and
the way the system was set up in that manner, Mr. White, you think it's bad there,
you should be in when the State negotiates with itself, it is even worse. So anyhow,
with all that being said, Mr. Chair, thank you very much, and Ill await your
recommendation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. One last question for Mr. Hiromoto. Come July 1st in
two weeks, all our employees in the affected bargaining units at the highest end of the
step movement will get a lump sum payment, right? That lump sum does not change
the base pay. If they're at max, they stay at max, they just get this one-time whatever
well call it, the lump sum payment? Is that a good understanding, mister...
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, that's correct. It's a bonus, it doesn't affect.. .it's a one-time
payment to the employees.
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CHAIR HOKAMA; Okay. So come July 16 ... 2016, July 1, do they get another one-time lump
sum at the, since they're at the max step again?
MR. HIROMOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's a good answer. I like that answer.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, in Unit 3 they do. Effective July 1, 2016, so it's B, Item B-2, employees
who are employed as of June 30, 2016 shall receive a one-time lump sum payment
equivalent to $1,200.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But only Unit 3, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is for Unit 3 and Unit 4.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What does 4 have?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Supervisory white in Unit 4 and non-supervisory white in Unit 3.
MR. BAZ: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . they get 1,500.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, two gets an across-the-board increase in 2016, SO yeah, there's no step
movements for that lump sum payment to be calculated. So they just get it across the
board. That would affect their base pay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we need to present our revisions to Committee, please?
Ms. Yoshimura.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the revisions that the Staff has included is to attach the
summary of cost items instead of the County communication to the resolution. That
will give us the amount per bargaining unit as of, for Fiscal Year 2016 and 2017. And
the rest is housekeeping to include the Budget Director in receiving a certified copy of
the resolution, and to indicate that it's the Hawaii Government Employees Association
for Bargaining Units 2, 3, and 4.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, any questions on the revisions we want to make to the
proposed resolutions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. No, not to that, but I had a question
because the lifeguards are currently within these units that we're discussing now.
Their big issue in regards to hazard pay, is that being addressed anywhere in here? I
don't believe it is but is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto.
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, Member Cochran, no, it's not. They have their, we're currently in
negotiations with Bargaining Unit 14 and the issues that they want to bring forth to
the employer. So no, it's not in this contract.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, not currently.
MR. HIROMOTO: But they will receive the pay increases in, that are before you, and when
the new contract is developed or is established, we're hoping that the union looks at
what they already got and go from there.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank. you very much. And, Chair, thank you for
bringing up the Clerk issue too. There was a lot of testimonies and things at one point
here. And so with that, mister... and it was curious to hear that Maui County is the
only one that has that issue and the others do not. So I'm just kind of wanting a little
more clarification as to why that's occurring. And, Mr. Hiromoto, if you're in a
position to have had said something at these negotiations in reference to that or I
don't, just not quite sure why we stand out from the other counties in regards to that
discrepancy or deficiency.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director.
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair? Member Cochran, I, it's just an issue that the, this group brought
before you and before the Mayor. I don't know any more than that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And so that would be... Chair, maybe the particular
union bargaining unit perhaps would be the main go-to for employees to discuss? But
then Mr. Hiromoto would, I don't know, get that information and come to the table
with it and say... or no, is that not the process?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would expect the employees' collective bargaining agent would bring it to
the table on their behalf. I mean that's how -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --my experience in the private sector is the side with the request usually
brings it to the table and we discuss it, hash it out, agree or disagree or find one
common grounds someplace else. But I would, my only recommendation to our
employees is go see your collective bargaining representative. You pay union dues,
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you deserve representation, go and seek your legal representative and get them to
represent.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Thank you, Chair. But I guess they went that route
and it, they didn't really get anywhere. Or I mean I don't recall but I thought perhaps
on Mr. Hiromoto's behalf too could help urge or.. .if we're at the table, I know we would
help urge because we put through, you know, support for that, for this, and now we're
here at, with no changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say it's a unique situation. You're dealing with two different
collective bargaining entities, both with different types of membership makeup and
both with different job requirements and qualifications. So I would say as
Mr. Victorino said earlier, it ain't apples to apples when you're looking at what they're
saying has a disparity, they're not talking about the same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They're talking about two different employment programs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And it's not the same, not in your Chair's opinion. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well thank you. Thank you for the discussion, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything else, Members? Then well again, let the Staff make those
nonsubstantive changes in the revisions. Well make those appropriate additions with
HGEA. Add a new whereas clause regarding the summary of cost items is attached as
an exhibit. And I think that is basically it, Staff. Again, I appreciate all your
comments, it is very important that we place it on the record. I would agree that we
unfortunately are in that corner because of a clock. I wish we had more time where
we could say we're not going to take action and we want this back on the table and go
talk about it and bring us back another consideration, but they don't give us that type
of options. It's like well, thank you for your comment but the clock is, you're at 11:59
and we need one decision by 12:00. So I know we all hate that, but your Chair's going
to recommend that we push out the three resolutions as revised and proposed by the
Staff and your Chair. And well also.. .is there any request we had regarding
information? Did any of you request additional information for us to provide before we
send to Council? Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would like to, I think I asked for some information but I can't
remember what it was.
MS. YOSHIMURA: It was on the...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh that's right, it was the percentage increase on the healthcare.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Percentage increase.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The other thing I would appreciate, Chair, is that, you know, Mr. Baz
brought up the reminder that we're paying 60 percent of healthcare versus 50 percent
by the State and the other counties. I would appreciate it if Mr. Baz would be able to
provide us with what exactly that costs us per year, and because I don't remember
getting anything in return for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consideration.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't think we got any work rule changes, I don't think we got any
other provisions softened when we provided the Memorandum of Understanding to
pay 60 instead of 50 percent. So I would appreciate an accounting of what that costs
US.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Well forward those requests.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well forward the request and allow Mr. Baz time to respond. And if need
be he can also consult with Mr. Hiromoto, so you have, well have that. Okay, any
other requests? If not, well put forward that request. The Chair is open to a motion
recommending to Council adoption of proposed revised resolutions three, for all three
proposals. The first one would be Approving Cost Items for Unit 2, Supervisory Blue
Collar Employees. The second resolution would be Approving Cost Items for Unit 3,
Non-Supervisory White Collar Employees, and Unit 4, Supervisory White Collar
Employees; and the third revised resolution under Approving Cost Items for
Non-Supervisory White Collar Employees Excluded from Bargaining Unit 3, and
Supervisory White Collar Employees Excluded from Bargaining Unit 4.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Do we
need to file any communications?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Any objections, Members, to include all filing of all County
communications?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any further discussion, Members? Having none, all in favor
of the motion, please say "aye".
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COUNCILMEMBERS: "Aye".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no". Motion passes with nine ayes and zero noes.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION of revised resolutions; and FILING of
communications by C.R.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's taken care of. I did tell you that we're gonna need to look at
something like $2.472562 for the upcoming year, so well work with Mr. Baz and well
make those adjustments when required, Members. Anything else, Mr. Hiromoto?
Mr. Baz? Mr. Ueoka? Okay, Members, thank you for your presence. This meeting is
adjourned. . ..(gavel)...
ADJOURN: 10:54 a.m.
APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 1506 15:ds

Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck
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